ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 27, 2015
9:02 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Bill Stoltze, Chair
Senat or John Coghill, Vice Chair
Senator Charlie Huggi ns

Senator Lesil MQiire

Senator Bill W el echowski

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON BY EXECUTI VE BRANCH REPRESENTATI VES: MARI JUANA
BALLOT MEASURE - DI SCUSSI ON OF | MPLEMENTATI ON / ADM NI STRATI ON
PERSPECTI VE

- HEARD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
See Senate State Affairs mnutes from 1/22/15.
W TNESS REG STER

HARRI ET M LKS, Assistant Attorney Ceneral

Cvil Division

Al aska Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded depart nment al i nsi ght and
recommendati ons on the marijuana ball ot neasure.

KACI SCHROEDER, Assistant Attorney General

Crimnal Division

Al aska Departnent of Law

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded depart ment al i nsi ght and
recommendati ons on the marijuana ball ot neasure.

M KE LESSMAN, Legislative Liaison

Al aska Departnent of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded depart ment al i nsi ght and
recommendati ons on the marijuana ball ot neasure.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- January 27, 2015



MAJOR DENNI S CASANOVAS, Deputy Director

Di vision of Al aska State Troopers

Al aska Departnent of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska.

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded depart nment al i nsi ght and
recommendations on the marijuana ball ot neasure.

JERRY BURNETT, Deputy Comm ssioner

Al aska Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded depart nment al i nsi ght and
recommendati ons on the marijuana ball ot neasure.

KEN ALPER, Director

Tax Divi sion

Al aska Departnent of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded depart nment al i nsi ght and
recommendati ons on the marijuana ball ot neasure.

BRANDON SPANCS, Deputy Director

Tax Divi sion

Al aska Departnent of Revenue

Anchor age, Al aska,

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provi ded depart nment al i nsi ght and
recommendati ons on the marijuana ball ot neasure.

CYNTHI A FRANKLI N, Director

Al cohol i ¢ Beverage Control Board

Al aska Departnent of Community and Regi onal Affairs

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided insight and recommendations from
the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board's perspective on the
mari j uana bal |l ot measure.

JEFF JESSEE, Chief Executive Oficer

Al aska Mental Health Trust Authority

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Provided insight and recommendations from
the Alaska Mental Health Trust Authority's perspective on the
mari j uana bal | ot measure.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

9:02: 32 AM

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 27, 2015



CHAIR BILL STO.TZE called the Senate State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 9:02 a.m Present at the call to
order were Senators McQuire, Wel echowski, and Chair Stoltze.

PRESENTATI ON BY EXECUTI VE BRANCH REPRESENTATI VES: MARI JUANA
BALLOT MEASURE - DI SCUSSI ON OF | MPLEMENTATI ON / ADM NI STRATI ON
PERSPECTI| VE

9:02: 47 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE announced that the conmittee wll continue its
review of the marijuana initiative, Ballot Measure 2. He added
that there is no legislation in the commttee for the omibus or
the conprehensive marijuana bill. He specified that a bill wll
be forthcomng from one of the commttee nenbers, Vice-Chair
Coghi |l or Senator MGCuire.

He said the thene for the conmttee neeting is a presentation by
the Wal ker administration fromthe various departnents that have
the nost direct inpact. He explained that the committee cherry-
pi cked the nost relevant and frontline agencies and departnents
that will be helping to fornmulate any legislation in addition to
coping with the act's inplenentation when it goes into |aw.

9:05: 38 AM
HARRI ET M LKS, Assistant Attorney General, Gvil D vision,
Al aska Departnent of Revenue, Juneau.

9:06:13 AM

KACI SCHROEDER, Assistant Attorney General, Crimnal Division,
Al aska Departnent of Law, Juneau, Al aska, said her presentation
wi || address questions raised by the initiative for the Crim nal
Division. She revealed that the initiative does not repeal any
| aw. She pointed out that the state has a legal structure to
deal wth conflicting statutes wthout having to start from
scrat ch.

She said the Departnent of Law would like to point out a few
things that are in conflict. She revealed that there are three
marijuana definitions on the books once the initiative becones
effective. She said the nedical marijuana definition is very
short and basic. She noted that the marijuana definition in the
drug offense statutes is nmuch nore extensive and pointed out
that the definition specifically excludes: hashish, hashish oil,
and resins in oils nade from the marijuana plant. She discl osed
that the marijuana definition in the initiative does include
marijuana concentrates and resins. She specified that case |aw
says that conflicting statutes are not supposed to be

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 27, 2015



interpreted in such a way that it nullifies parts of the
statute, but conflicting statutes are supposed to be harnoni zed.
She conceded that harnonization is an inexact science and
different people will harnonize in different ways.

9:08: 38 AM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSBKI opi ned that having one definition would be
preferable. He asked if M. Schroeder agreed and what would be
her recommended definition.

M5. SCHROEDER replied that she agreed that one definition would
be preferred. She stated that the Departnent of Law would defer
to the Legislature or regulatory board of what definition they
want to pick. She noted that the Departnent of Law has an issue
with the term "concentrates." She specified that the Departnent
of Law would |ike sonme definition of "concentrates" regardless
of the definition for marijuana.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that the overriding thene of the bill is
preci se definitions.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked Chair Stoltze if maybe it is tinme for
the committee to get into the specifics.

CHAIR STOLTZE replied that the commttee does not have a bill
but noted that questions can be placed on the record.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked what "PSUM' stands for in the
initiative.

M5. MLKS answered that PSUM is an acronym wused in the
initiative, [Production, Sale, and Use of Marijuana].

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked why the Departnent of Law has an
i ssue with "concentrates."”

9:10:11 AM

M5. SCHROEDER explained that the "concentrates"” definition
currently in the drug offense statutes specifically excludes
hashi sh, hashish oil, resin, and extracted oil. She said the
statute's definitions for hashish and hashish oil include the
word "resins" and "concentrate." She pointed out that there
could be an argunment that hashish and hashish oil are
concentrates. She revealed that under current |aw, hashish and
hashi sh oil are schedule IIl1 A drugs and marijuana is a schedul e
6A drug. She stated that the Departnent of Law needs to know the
Legislature's intent with the definition for concentrates.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- January 27, 2015



SENATOR W ELECHOMSKI asked if the Departnent of Law recomrends
that hashish's definition be kept different or kept out. He
inquired what the issue is with hashish as opposed to marijuana
concentrat e.

M5. SCHRCEDER replied that hashish is made in a different way.
She specified that hashish is nmuch nore concentrated w th higher
t etrahydrocannabinols (THC) levels than marijuana. She said an
ounce of hashish oil wll go a lot farther than an ounce of
marijuana. She stated that the Departnent of Law is not saying
t hat hashish has to be excluded or included, but a determ nation
needs to be nmde and regulatory boards can regulate it
differently even if it is included.

9:12:19 AM

She said the other issue the Departnent of Law wants to flag is
that currently it is a class B msdeneanor for sonmeone to
possess |less than an ounce of marijuana. After the initiative
becones effective, anybody over 21 can possess an ounce or |ess,
but a person wunder 21 wll be charged with a <class B
m sdeneanor, a crimnal of f ense. She explained that the
Department of Law does not know if a violation for those under
21 should be considered or maybe something simlar to the m nor
consum ng al cohol statute.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked how m nor consum ng of al cohol is treated.

M5. SCHROEDER replied that a person's first two offenses are
violations and then a m sdeneanor after the first two.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI stated that everyone is in agreenent for
not wanting Kkids to be wusing marijuana. He asked if the
departnment had an opinion on a kid getting a m sdenmeanor when
there is a good chance the offense could be on his record for a
long tine.

M5. SCHROEDER replied that Departnent of Law does not have an
opinion. She said if the intent is to regulate marijuana |ike
al cohol, the Legislature nmay want to consider |ooking at how
al cohol is treated for mnors. She specified that if the
Legi slature decides nmarijuana is different than alcohol, than
the offense structure needs to be different, that's fine too.
She stated that the Departnent of Law knows that underage
possession is going to be an issue and the departnent does not
want there to be conplaints where a person that is 20 and a half
is charged with a m sdeneanor.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 27, 2015



9:14: 18 AM

M5. SCHROEDER noted that the initiative allows |ocal governnents
to prohibit marijuana establishnments from operating within their
muni ci pality. She said the departnment needs direction on what
the penalty should be for operating marijuana cultivation
facilities, pr oduct manuf act uri ng facilities, testing
facilities, or retail stores in a community that has opted to
prohi bit such activities. She pointed out that the penalties in
the <current drug offense statutes range from a <class A
m sdeneanor to an unclassified felony for the previously noted
activities. She asked if the noted offenses should be treated in
the sanme way as bringing alcohol into an opt-out community where
the offense is either a class A m sdeneanor or class C felony.

She reiterated that the initiative does not repeal any |aw and
noted that marijuana is still a <controlled substance. She
specified that under the pronoting contraband statutes, bringing
a controlled substance into a correctional facility is a class C
felony and bringing a legal product |ike tobacco into a
correctional facility is a class A misdeneanor. She inquired
whet her the pronoting contraband statute should be anended.

9:16: 23 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE commented that both the commttee and the
Departnment of Law is seeking clarity on the marijuana issue. He
pointed out that PSUM proponents have testified towards a
mnimm role for the Legislature with broader authority to a
board. He asked if the Departnent of Law can give the conmmttee
gui dance.

M5. MLKS noted that she is representing the Cvil Division of
the Departnent of Law. She asserted that the Departnent of Law
is ready to get to work and do what they can to assist the
Al aska Beverage Control Board (ABC Board) or a narijuana contro

board in regulating the new marijuana industry.

CHAIR STOLTZE queried if the Departnent of Law can give the
commttee nore guidance. He asked if the departnent would prefer
adm nistering with clarified definitions. He inquired if the
Department of Law would prefer a board-direction where a board
makes the rules and regul ati ons.

9:18: 35 AM

M5. MLKS answered that the Departnent of Law can be nore
specific. She said with respect to definitions, |awers always
like bright-lines. She stated that the Legislature can be

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 27, 2015



hel pful by assisting the regulatory board in defining inportant
terms |ike "marijuana” and "public."”

CHAI R STOLTZE opined that the Wl ker admnistration apparently
wants the Legislature to defer to the growers and producers to
define and regul ate marijuana.

M5. MLKS replied that she did not intend to nmake the inference
that Chair Stoltze noted.

CHAIR STOLTZE reiterated that the Legislature is |ooking for
gui dance. He asserted that the Departnent of Law is nmaeking a
statenent by deferring.

9:20: 42 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE asked that if the Legislature was to change the
pronoting statute to change the definitions such that marijuana
woul d not be a controlled substance in that area and to regul ate
it nore |like tobacco and al cohol, would the Legislature need to,
across the board, change the definition of marijuana as a
controlled substance. She noted that M. Schroeder was shaking
her head "no." She added that besides the pronoting contraband
statute, what other places in law wll the Legislature be
affected by | eaving marijuana as a controll ed substance.

SENATOR COGHI LL joi ned the conmittee neeting.

M5. SCHRCEDER answered that taking marijuana out of the
controll ed substance classification would affect the entire drug
of fense statutes because the statutes all refer to controlled
substances. She stated that a change was not inpossible. She
explained that an easy drafting nodification wuld be to
specifically revise the pronoting contraband statute by carving
out marijuana while leaving the rest of the controlled
substances as a class C felony.

SENATOR MCGUI RE remarked that the Departnent of Law s detailed
presentation specified the places where clarity is needed as

well as the potential for absurd results if marijuana is
regulated nore |ike alcohol. She said the Departnent of Law
pointed out that marijuana is still a controlled substance and

its effect as to whether the pronoting contraband statute at
correctional facilities should be anmended. She asked that the
Department of Law thoroughly review other places where they
woul d see a felony or a m sdeneanor crime conme into place versus
a |lesser penalty for alcohol. She stated that her assunption is
that there are nore pl aces.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- January 27, 2015



CHAIR STOLTZE concurred that receiving additional coments on
practical applications wuld be a good guide for all the
comittees that address marijuana.

9:24:15 AM
M KE LESSMAN, Legislative Liaison, Al aska Departnent of Public
Saf ety, Anchorage, Al aska.

9:24: 37 AM

MAJOR DENNIS CASANOVAS, Deputy Director, Division of Al aska
State Troopers, Al aska Department of Public Safety, Anchorage,
Al aska, presented his testinony as follows:

I appreciate the opportunity to address this
| egislative conmttee and to primarily reaffirmto you
that the Alaska State Troopers are conmmtted to
carrying out the laws of the state in the nopst
prof essional and effective manner possible.

Wiile nost state legislation is carefully crafted and
vetted and it includes nodifying existing statutory or
regul atory |anguage so the intent of new | egislation
is clear and conflicting |anguage and anbiguity is
elimnated, what we are faced with here wth the
passage of Ballot Measure 2, although it resulted in 8
community hearings held during Septenber of 2014 and
now that the election results have been certified,
Al aska State Troopers and ot her Al aska |aw enforcenent
officers around the state are expected to understand
and legally enforce the changes which this initiative
provides for and | point out that it's just going to
be in 27 days from now.

| would like to outline where the Al aska Legislature
may be able to assist |aw enforcenent in understanding
what is expected of us and to better inform the |aw
abi ding public on what is expected of themas well.

9:26: 05 AM
The primary issue as you ve heard the Departnent of
Law talk about is this reconciliation or nerging of
definitions of marijuana; again, that we will need to
know by February 24. There are existing statutes as
you have heard testinony to and this slide primrily
points out the differences in that definition between
the statute that police officers are nost famliar

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 27, 2015



with, AS 11.71.900, and then the new initiative on the
far right hand side of the slide. The new initiative
is much nore broad and enconpassing of the definition.
W have been accustonmed to just |ooking at a marijuana
plant or marijuana products and saying there's only
four active parts of that plant and that's the
flowers, buds, leafs, and seeds. Now with the new
initiative t hat definition has expanded and
essentially includes anything that could be extracted
from the plant to include the resins, conmpounds, and
the manufacture of itenms from this plant. To further
sort of conplicate that issue is that in the ballot
initiative the definition says what's not there and

that's fiber produced from the stalks, oil, or cake
made from the seeds of the plant, etc. So they have
the word "oil" in the lower part of the initiative
that is not part of the plant. | would like to give a

few exanpl es of the circunstances that |aw enforcenent
may be faced with here next nonth and see if it's
clear to the board to hear what it is that your
deci si on woul d be.

9:28:21 AM

If we could envision a l|law enforcenent officer
contacting a citizen in a public place, perhaps a
street corner or an airport or a Marine H ghway System
terminal, or even on school grounds which aren't
al r eady post ed prohi biting t he possessi on of
marijuana, or even during a traffic stop on a public
roadway. So you have a 21 year old citizen, who has a
container with slightly less than one ounce of a
substance that appears to be a narijuana concentrate
and 6 marijuana plants, only 3 of which that are
mature, flowering plants. Wuld this be a crimnal
of fense? If you apply the definition of the new ball ot
measure, the answer would be probably not. But if you
apply the definitions found in current statute that
aren't being nodified or revoked yet, the answer would
be it could be a crimnal offense.

So if we add another variable to that, let's say the
| aw enforcenment officer contacts three 21-year-olds in
a vehicle on a public roadway, sitting in the center
console of the vehicle is a single container with just
under three ounces of marijuana or mar i j uana
concentrate and that there are 18 marijuana plants,
only 9 of which are mature, flowering plants. The

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 27, 2015



citizens in the stop claim that each of them own one
third of the products. Is there a crimnal offense?
Applying the definition of the new Ballot Measure the
answer may be no. But applying current Alaska |aw and
court rulings that describe possession which may be
sole or actual possessi on, constructive or held
jointly with others, the answer could be that this
could be a crimnal offense.

9:30: 18 AM
Let's examine a |aw enforcenent officer who responds
to a residential apartment or hone for a call for

service; while there, the officer learns that from
each of the four 2l1-year-olds that this is their
primary residence. Found in the hone is 24 grow ng
marijuana plants, 12 of which are mature, flowering
plants. Is this a crimnal offense by one, or perhaps
all four of the residents, or are they within their
legal limts per the Ballot Measure?

And one additional variable to that is let's say that
in addition to all these plants, there are three
pounds of harvested narijuana |ocated in the hone.
Does the l|anguage found in the initiative under AS
17.38.020(b), which reads that is not a crimnal or
civil offense wunder Alaska law to possess, grow,
process, transport nore than six marijuana plants,
three or fewer being mature plants, and the possession
of the marijuana produced by the plants on the
prem ses where the plants were grown, neaning that
there is potentially no maximumlimt to the anmount of
marijuana produced by the plants in the residence
where the plants are that can be harvested or
ret ai ned.

9:31:46 AM
MAJOR CASANOVAS summari zed as fol | ows:

Bal | ot Measure 2 is going to require the Alaska State
Troopers to order, and we have, over four hundred
battery operated scales to hand out to Alaska State
Troopers and Village Public Safety Oficers so that
they may be able to accurately weigh marijuana and
marijuana concentrates when encountered. W intend to
produce a PowerPoint presentation to our troopers as
to the policies for enforcenent of this new | aw but we
still need your assistance in clarifying sone of the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- January 27, 2015



conflicting and anbi guous | anguage before February 24,
which will assist us in designing those policies. Qur
Al aska |aw enforcenent officers and the vast mmjority
of Alaska's general public wish to conply with the
| aws which are enacted, but we need your direction and
support in making those |aws wunderstandable and
enforceable and to later withstand judicial review

9:32:45 AM

CHAI R STOLTZE asked if Major Casanovas had concern or optimsm
regarding the Legislature reaching the clear lines to allow the
Al aska State Troopers to adm nister justice.

MAJOR CASANOVAS replied that the initiative was certified two
nmonths ago and there is one nmonth left. He noted that there is
at least one bill noving forward. He revealed that the
Departnent of Public Safety has net with several other state
departments and he remains optimstic that the departnent can
have sone | anguage reconciliation prior to February 24.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if the initiative is simlar to the Mranda
Rul ing which had a |ot of opposition or concern about it and it
eventually shook out. He inquired if the initiative has to be
tested by arrest.

MAJOR CASANOVAS answered that his hope is that by putting the
time upfront in getting the definitions clarified so that |aw
enforcenent knows what the rules are, there will be less |ong
term expensive litigation and heartache from citizens and the
judiciary. He said he thinks if we just burn the candle at both
ends right now, perhaps a lot of consternation, anxiety, and
expense can be avoi ded down the road.

CHAIR STOLTZE commented that Mjor Casanovas holds a conmmon
Vi ew.

9:34: 55 AM

SENATOR MCGUI RE remarked that there has been a narrow focus on
what is the definition of marijuana. She stated that from a
broader view, the reason for Jlaws pertaining to alcohol,
marijuana, and other drugs is due to the mnd altering effects
on human beings that nmay or nay not create public safety or
other types of threats or concerns within a comunity. She
asserted that the Legislature in many cases has been forced to
go back and reevaluate the state's relationship with marijuana.
She explained that the initiative has tried to carve out one

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- January 27, 2015



area, but in doing so the initiative has
broader issue on the Legislature' s |ap.

SENATOR MCGUIRE said she is looking for
Safety's point of view on the foll ow ng:

* How does the departnent view marijuana?
e How do the officers view marijuana?

thrown the bigger,

the Departnent of

* Wiat is marijuana's placenent in Al aska's communities?
 What is marijuana's placenment in society?
* Wiere do you think the Legislature should come down in

terms of the regulation of marijuana?

* What are the potential harns and threats to human bei ngs?
e \Wiere are the places you are seeing potential threats?
* Are your concerns in certain parts of the state?

e Are your concer ns nor e on t he
di stribution?

manuf act ur er and

* Are you seeing physical crinmes occur alongside marijuana at
a rate that is disproportionate to other nmnd altering

subst ances?

e What are the kinds of things from a public safety point of

vi ew should the commttee know?

9:37:27 AM
MAJOR CASANOVAS replied as foll ows:

The points that the Departnent of

Law nmde; for

exanple, where the |ine should be drawn between the
current understanding of marijuana as a 6A controlled
substance: flowers, seeds, buds, |eaves? How do we
cross that next bridge that apparently the voters
supported in this ballot initiative to expand that to
things that are a lot higher in concentration of THC?
How do we bridge that? Do we say that there is a
demarcation point there or do we not? Do we say that
anything, everything from a marijuana plant is going
to be legal in sonme quantities or not? That is the
crux of the matter and I'Il have to defer to the

expertise of the State Medical Oficer

in regards to

the toxicity and the inpacts upon people and those
sorts of things. But right now | aw enforcenent is very
focused on the difference between a Schedule I1I11A
controll ed substance, which is nore serious than a 6A,

and the [1TTA is hashi sh, hash

oil, and it's

Tet rahydr ocannabi nol s and those are considered at this

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12-

January 27, 2015



point to be nore serious and we've been very focused
on drawing the distinctions between those two for
approximately 30 years now in those statutes and now
to sort of nerge them all together based on this
ballot initiative is the thing that we are struggling
with in | aw enforcenent.

9: 39: 24 AM

SENATOR MCQUI RE stated that she is interested in creating policy
that reflects comobn sense and that responds to the kinds of
chal l enges that are out there. She noted that Myjor Casanovas
made a point between Schedule 111 and 6A drugs; but, to the
average public person, they don't really understand all of that,
what matters is the public safety part of it. She pointed out
that over two years of hearings with detailed testinony occurred
when the Legislature |lowered the blood-alcohol to 0.08 for
driving under the influence. She specified that the bl ood-
al cohol change was nmade not because the Legislature could, but
because driving at 0.10 was nore of a threat to public safety
than 0.08. She said law enforcenent is on the ground dealing
with people who distribute and use marijuana. She asked what
Maj or Casanovas is seeing that the commttee should be concerned
about. She conceded that everyone can agree that the public
safety issue of young people using marijuana is not sonething
the State of Alaska should encourage, but as the Legislature
noves into the issue of adults 21-and-over using cannabinoids,
where should the Legislature be alarnmed, in the ounces or the
concentrates? She asked that nore specific testinony be provided
in the future where officers observe a person's behavior under
the influence of cannabinoids. She reiterated that the
Department of Public Safety is on the ground, responding to
peopl e under the influence of marijuana and the departnent can
really help the Legislature.

9:41:12 AM
SENATOR HUGGE NS joined the committee neeting.

MAJOR CASANOVAS replied that he will certainly discuss with his
supervisors as to what it is that the departnent mght be able
to do to answer Senator MQuire's question.

CHAI R STOLTZE comented that the commttee will ook forward to
the detailed foll ow up.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI stated that he appreciates the exanples

that Mjor Casanovas gave and his conmments. He noted that there
is a strong desire to get this right on behalf of the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- January 27, 2015



Legi slature. He conceded that there clearly are inconsistencies
between the law and the initiative; but, the Legislature is
going to try to fix it and get it right. He remarked that the
Legislature will possibly mss sonething when enacting the | aw.

CHAI R STOLTZE commented that it is |ikely.

SENATOR W ELECHONSKI replied that he agreed. He remarked that

the enforcenent should be to enact the will of the people. He
said enforcenent should not be to say, "Well, under the old |aw
you have one plant too nmany in your car, but under the
initiative that's okay;" that's the wll of the people, the

peopl e have spoken. He asserted that the enforcenent policy
should be to followthe will of the people.

SENATOR MCGUI RE affirnmed that Senator Wel echowski nade a good
point that the Legislature's job is to enact the wll of the
peopl e. She asserted that an exception occurs where there is a
public safety threat. She agreed with the scenario presented as
to why a person should be charged with a felony rather than
violation or msdeneanor for having one plant nore. She
specified that her intent is to get at case exanples where the
Departnment of Safety is really <concerned and where the
Legi sl ature should draw the bright-Iines.

CHAIR STOLTZE comented that he is hoping to direct the
commttee's attention to the Walker admnistration presenting
what Senator MQ@ire is asking for. He noted that what the

committee is debating usually occurs during the bill wap up.
9:44:. 57 AM

SENATOR COCGHILL said one of the questions the Legislature is
westling with is to tell when somebody is inpaired using
mar i j uana.

MAJOR CASANOVAS replied that arrest for inpairnment depends on
the officer doing the foll ow ng:

» (bserves vehicle nmaneuvers that |eads to a stop

* (Odor detection during initial encounter.

* Asks the driver for a verbal explanation on his or her
condition and what they m ght have consuned.

* Have the subject, if wlling, participate in a series of
field sobriety tests.

 Use a portable breath testing device to determne if
al cohol is involved.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- January 27, 2015



MAJOR CASANOVAS continued that if there is no evidence of

al cohol and the person still appears to exhibit all the synptons
and signs of being under the influence of sonmething, whether
that is a prescription or illicit drugs, the officer takes al

of the previously noted field observations into consideration to
make the decision whether to arrest or not. He explained that
once an arrest is made, then a consent for a blood draw fromthe
subject or a search warrant is obtained for a blood draw from
the subject to try to be able to later identify what substances
may or may not have been onboard the person that would have
resulted in the inpairnent.

He specified that an officer in the field cannot ascertain
whet her a person's inpairment is marijuana and marijuana only in
addition to identifying whether marijuana is comngled wth
al cohol or prescription drugs. He explained that there is not a
field test or a breath test device that would at this point be
avai l able that would tell an officer the |level at which a person
m ght be inpaired by marijuana al one.

9:47:46 AM
SENATOR COGHI LL responded that he just wanted to get the
information as a starting point for discussion.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked for the Departnment of Public Safety to
provide a narrative which will be useful all the way through the
commttee process as well as the floor. He requested that the
department submit an official docunment that identifies their
obj ective and subj ective appl i cations for determ ni ng
I npai rment .

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that Senator Welechowski's statenent
regarding "will of the people” is inportant. He commented that
if a parallel to alcohol is used with nmarijuana, what are the
conplicating enforcenent factors when a person is prohibited to
use al cohol or marijuana by a court case.

9:49: 34 AM
MAJOR CASANOVAS answered that the difficulty for |aw enforcenent
will be if the officer is not provided benefit of the subject

t henmsel ves admtting or outlining what it is that they have been
taking or any wtnesses to provide that information. He said
there is very minimal information available to the officer in
the field for trying to isolate whether or not marijuana or a
concentrate or sonething was used by the subject that may put
them in violation of their conditions of release or conditions

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 27, 2015



of probation; it is a hurdle for us to overconme in the field
wi th marijuana.

SENATOR HUGGE NS noted that there has been a major influx of
marijuana going into states that border Col orado. He asked what
woul d happen from an enforcenent perspective if Wsilla decides
that they are not going to participate in the marijuana process
and neighboring cities |ike Anchorage or Palnmer decide not to
opt out.

9:51: 26 AM
MAJOR CASANOVAS replied that based upon discussions he has had
with the Departnment of Law, a person 21 and older will have the

right to possess and transport marijuana in public. He noted
that he has not heard that a community can actually put up a
fence for marijuana as is done with alcohol. He said he believed
that the initiative is going to, in essence, disallow a
community from prohibiting possession; but, comunities can
regul ate or ban nmarijuana cultivation, manufacturing, testing,
and retail sales.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if marijuana equates with alcohol as to
whether there is transferability in areas that are "danp," "wet"
Or n dr.yl n

MAJOR CASANOVAS surmised that there is no transferability
because even though conmunities could vote against t he
possession or inportation of alcohol into their comunities, as
about 108 comunities currently do, the marijuana initiative

appears to say that people will have the right, up to an ounce,
21 years of age, to have possession of narijuana when they cone
into the city limts of comunities that do not allow the

possession or inportation of alcohol.

CHAI R STOLTZE announced that representatives from the Departnent
of Revenue wll testify before the committee.

9:54: 31 AM
JERRY BURNETT, Deputy  Comm ssi oner, Al aska Depart nent of
Revenue, Juneau, Al aska.

KEN ALPER, Director, Tax D vision, Alaska Departnent of Revenue,
Juneau, Al aska.

BRANDON SPANCS, Deputy Director, Tax Division, Al aska Departnent
of Revenue, Anchorage, Al aska.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- January 27, 2015



MR. ALPER noted that M. Spanos oversees the excise tax group
which is the group that wll be charged with overseeing any
marijuana taxation statutes. He said the initiative is a fairly
| engt hy piece of |aw, about 8 pages long and taxation is fairly
brief, approximately a half of a page. He revealed that the
Department of Revenue has been working with the ABC Board and
other agencies from the beginning to make sure that the
transition is relatively seamess. He asserted that the tax
portion of the law is a relatively straight forward corner of
the overall marijuana initiative.

He stated that the Departnent of Revenue is expected to coll ect
$50 per ounce. He said the transfer will occur at the first
transaction fromthe grower or cultivator to the manufacturer or
retailer. He specified that the law is fairly clear that the
plant itself, the useable part, will be taxed at the cultivation
facility and not a manufactured concentrate or anything else in
those lines. He noted that the follow up to the taxation section
in the statute is that differential taxes on different parts of
the plant can be established if so chosen, but the $50 per ounce
is the baseline position.

9:56:16 AM

He revealed that the Tax Division admnistratively collects
t axes throughout the state, including: alcohol, tobacco, notor
fuels, vehicle rentals, and tires. He set forth that the
Department of Revenue anticipates that the marijuana taxation
functions will be handled inside of the departnent's excise tax
group. He asserted that adding marijuana taxation is well within
the departnment's conpetency to add another one. He shared that
the departnent's one concern is to mintain taxation on the
whol esal e or producer level as is done with tobacco and al cohol.
He stated that taxation at the individual retailer level would
inpose a nmuch nore conplex admnistrative burden on the
depart nment.

He revealed that prelinmnary revenue estinmates from the
departnent's economic research group is $5 mllion to $20
mllion in the first full year of taxation and regulation of
marijuana. He noted that the relatively broad revenue estimate
is attributed to sonme inherent unknowns such as the quantity and
vol une of current marijuana users in the state. He reported that
t he biggest variable is what proportion of the current cohort of
marijuana snokers and consuners are going to transition from
illegal to the legal tax regulated market. He noted that the
only points of data where from Col orado and Washi ngton where
robust and fully functional nedical nmarijuana industries and

SENATE STA COW TTEE -17- January 27, 2015



di spensaries were operating wth nmarijuana that was |ess
expensive than the legal recreational facilities. He explained
that conversion rates have been relatively low in Col orado and
Washi ngton. He pointed out that Al aska does not have a fully
devel oped nedical marijuana industry despite the fact that
medi cal marijuana has been legal and on the state's books for
sone years.

MR, ALPER stated that tax enforcenent is widely believed to be a
good way of catching and prosecuting |aw breakers that m ght be
hard to catch in other ways. He said the Departnent of Revenue
envi sions working with the |icensing agencies; for exanple, if a
selling facility after inspection is found to have seven pounds
of marijuana in their possession and they can't prove from whom
they bought it and the taxes were paid when they got it, the
Department of Revenue has a tax enforcenent case with relatively
robust fines as well as the $50 an ounce tax itself. He
speci fied t hat t he Depart ment of Revenue' s Cri m nal
| nvestigations Unit works not just for the Tax Division, but for
the Al aska Permanent Fund and the Child Support Enforcenent
Agency, will be working with the departnent to make sure that
marijuana taxes are collected. He revealed the fact that Al
Capone did not go to jail for being a gangster, he went to jai
for not paying his incone taxes.

9:59:16 AM

He stated that he fully expects that the Legislature will have a
robust and conplex role this Session. He surm sed that at | east
one bill wll be passed. He declared that the Departnent of
Revenue w Il not junp-the-gun and start a regulatory process
until the departnment receives direction. He noted that the

Department of Revenue is under a requirement to finish the
marijuana regulations by Novenber, a solid seven nonths after
the Session. He stated that the Departnent of Revenue is
confident that the regulatory process will be conpleted well in
advance of the deadline.

CHAIR STOLTZE related that the Departnent of Revenue projected
tax revenues to be $5 million to $20 mllion. He asked what the
depart ment anti ci pates for transacti onal costs for
i npl enentation within the departnent.

MR. BURNETT replied that the transactional costs are going to be

smal |, assuming that taxation continues at the whol esale |evel
He specified that with the other excise taxes, the transactional
costs will anount to |less than one fulltinme enpl oyee.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 27, 2015



SENATOR COGHI LL asked if +the tax scheme nmethodologies in
Col orado or Washi ngton were reviewed for gui dance.

MR. ALPER replied yes. He noted that other jurisdictions were
taxing at the retail level which nakes the tax process nore
conpl ex.

MR. SPANCS added that the Tax Division has |ooked at Col orado
and noted that he has a neeting with their contractor to assist
the division in developing their software to go over Colorado's

tax structure in detail. He stated that there does not seem to
be a lot that's going to be useful from Colorado's tax return.
He said the tax and tax return will be fairly sinple. He said

the Tax Division already has a draft-return that taxes ounces at
a certain rate. He noted that as M. Alper had already stated,
the Tax Division has an opportunity to tax different parts of
the plant at a different rate and that's the multi-conplex part
of the return.

SENATOR COGHI LL remarked that the conmttee is still trying to
figure out what does an "ounce" nean. He specified that "ounce"
could be the "plant™ or the "derivatives." He asked how the Tax
Division will interpret "ounce." He noted that Colorado is bar-
codi ng each plant and asked if the state will do the sane or use
an aggregate nethodology. He added that the Legislature wll
continue to discuss the marijuana regulation schene and noted
that the ABC Board is currently reviewi ng taxation schenes. He
asked what would be the best and cleanest way for the Tax
Division to tax marijuana.

10: 02: 56 AM
MR. ALPER answered that from the point of view of the Tax
Division, an ounce taxed will be the plant matter that is being

sold for future consunption. He detailed that wthin the
cultivation facility, there mght be the following: trimmng,
packagi ng, creating of the package, whatever that is to which
the plant will be transferred. He added that there will be a
scal e, stanp, and sone sort of nechanism to prove that the tax
has been paid. He asserted that he does not envision the issue
of concentrates being at all relevant to the Tax Division's
definition of an ounce for tax purposes, it's purely going to be
the plant itself.

SENATOR COGHI LL replied that the commttee will have to address
the retail-level because the plant value at a stemis one thing,
but the plant value in its concentrate is a very different
thing. He summarized that there are possession issues as well as

SENATE STA COW TTEE -19- January 27, 2015



value issues that the committee will have to think about. He
noted that the ABC Board is probably addressing the possession

and value issues. He stated that value will be an issue at the
Tax Division. He sunmarized that once a plant goes out and if
taxation is totally wholesale based, which I|ooks I|ike the
initiative wants the Legislature to do, value wll [Ilikely be

pl aced on an i ndividual plant.

10: 04: 14 AM

MR. BURNETT set forth that the Tax Division will not have a
problem with value taxation at the first transaction that is
based upon ounces. He noted that the initiative specifies
ounces. He stated that the Tax Division does not, for the nost
part, do retail taxes at the state level in A aska. He nentioned
that there is a question as to whether from the Legislature's
perspective that taxability be reserved for |[|ocal governnent
entities as is currently done with al cohol and tobacco.

SENATOR COGHILL <concurred that nmany comunities have sales
taxes. He agreed that retail taxation probably nore properly
bel ongs to the | ocal governnents.

MR. ALPER added that the Departnment of Revenue has |earned that
the concentrates in other states tend to be manufactured from
| oner value parts of the plant, things that mght not be usable
by the traditional snokables market. He detailed that a |arge
anount of | ower value product is being used to generate a smal
anount of concentrate and there would be consideration for a
different tax rate or different tax regine on the |ower value
portion of the marijuana plant.

10: 06: 00 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE noted that M. Al per has been involved with a |ot
of tax issues. He asked if M. Alper has considered hinself to
be pretty know edgeable with marijuana as well.

MR. ALPER responded that when he was asked to be the Director of
the Tax Division, marijuana was not part of the conversation nor
did he realize that it was going to be part of the job. He
stated that he does not consider himself to be nmuch of an
expert. He explained that he is sonewhat aware of the marijuana
i ndustry, but he noted that he has had to learn a |lot during his
two nonths on the job.

CHAI R STOLTZE noted that M. Alper is a part-owner of a bakery-
confection shop.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 27, 2015



MR. ALPER answered that is true.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if M. Alper or his famly have |ooked at
the possibility of being involved in the nmarijuana edibles
portion.

MR. ALPER replied that he and his wife were aware of the
initiative and have had alnpost joking conversations about
edi bles. He specified that their realization early on was that
they would need to see what the rules are going to be and woul d
need to run the economcs. He specified that he and his wife are
by no neans opposed, but by no neans gun-ho. He asserted that
ultimately in his role as Tax Director that it mght not be
appropriate. He said even if he and his wfe thought marijuana
edi bles mght be a good business decision, they mght opt out
just to avoid any appearance of conflict.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked to confirm that WM. Al per has had
di scussi ons about the business opportunities.

MR. ALPER answered that he has had informal discussion with his
wife who is his business partner.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked to confirm that M. Alper has not had
di scussions with any other people as well.

MR. ALPER replied that he does not understand the question.

10: 07: 47 AM
CHAIR STOLTZE asked if M. Apler and his wife have talked to
another person at any tine about a marijuana business
opportunity.

MR. ALPER replied that he and his wfe have had infornal
di scussions at a party or casual conversations. He noted that
Chair Stoltze is not the first person who has asked if he and
his wife would be interested in getting into the marijuana
i ndustry due to their bakery business.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked to verify that M. Alper's business
enthusiasmis very danp for marijuana.

MR. ALPER answered that on a scale from 1l to 10, his enthusi asm
is a 4.

SENATOR HUGGE NS stated that his assunption is that THC can by
produced synthetically. He asked if THC can indeed be produced

SENATE STA COW TTEE -21- January 27, 2015



synthetically and economically. He inquired if the Legislature
should have a concern for synthetic THC, particularly from a
taxati on standpoint where inexpensive THC m ght be incorporated
into edibles.

10: 09: 17 AM
MR. BURNETT answered that a synthetic THC would be illegal. He
specified that there are different laws that allow the

Department of Revenue to |ook at whether a business is using
artificial or imtation substances.

SENATOR HUGA NS pointed out that certain states |icense ethano
dealers to produce alcohol. He asked if the Departnment of
Revenue has considered quasi-legalized THC production that is
simlar to "noonshine" produced in the al cohol industry.

MR, ALPER replied that initiative allows a person to grow
marijuana and not be taxed or regulated. He specified that
growi ng larger quantities of marijuana than what is specified is
illegal. He stated that tip-offs to the departnment from legally
licensed growers will hopefully be one of the best enforcenent
nmechani sns.

10: 12: 03 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE asked if the Departnent of Revenue has consi dered
progressive taxes that increases based upon val ue.

MR. ALPER answered no. He said he is not interested in testing
or conparing relative quality of marijuana and declaring that a
certain product is worth nore.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked what the Departnent of Revenue anticipates
what the value of one ounce of marijuana wll be.

MR. ALPER answered that he did not know what the value of an
ounce of marijuana in Alaska is today. He said he knows that
marijuana prices are regionally distinctive due to a lot of
| ocal regional econom es.

MR, SPANGCS remarked that the Tax Division has done the research,
but he does not have the data in front of him He explained that
he has | ooked at Alaska's value via the internet and the Tax
D vi si on does have an i dea.

MR. ALPER stated that he anticipates, because of the federa
illegality on the restrictions on transportation that go al ong

SENATE STA COW TTEE -22- January 27, 2015



with pricing, that A aska wll have a series of regional
“locally grown" economies with differential prices.

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that finding Al aska's current marijuana
prices on the internet is interesting.

SENATOR HUGGE NS asked if the state should |ook at progressive
tax due to higher regional val ues.

10: 14: 53 AM

MR. BURNETT renmarked that higher regional prices should be taxed
locally. He said whether the state should be taxing marijuana at
a higher rate or |ocal conmunities ought to be | ooking at taxing
hi gher values is certainly open to discussion.

MR. ALPER opined that |local pricing discrepancies is quite
likely due to there not being locally grown and available
supply. He surmised that marijuana is possibly being brought in
illegally and that activity is sonmething other agencies would
need to be | ooking into.

SENATOR HUGAE NS pointed out that there has been specul ation on
the state having sonme sort of banking system in addition to
transportation challenges. He asked to confirm that federal
agencies do not allow marijuana to be transported on airlines.
He inquired if the state should be involved with transportation.

MR. BURNETT replied that Senator Huggins' query is not a
function of the Departnment of Revenue, but he believes that
addressing both banking and transportation is a rationa
guesti on. He remarked that both the Admnistration and
Legi sl ature shoul d be | ooki ng at banking and transportation.

MR. ALPER stated that the Tax Division would prefer that people
not bring large anmounts of cash to pay their excise taxes.

10: 16: 48 AM
SENATOR MCGUI RE commented that saying higher pricing based upon
marijuana being a black nmarket itemis not necessarily true. She
poi nted out that marketing for Copper River sockeye salnon is an
exanple where higher value is placed upon a comodity by
pur chasers.

SENATOR MCGUI RE addressed taxation and surmsed that like oil
taxes, marijuana taxes wll evolve over tine. She opined that
marijuana's initial taxation will not be the only way forever.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -23- January 27, 2015



SENATOR MCGQUIRE said if marijuana becomes a huge conmmerci al
i ndustry, lots of people will be talking about different way to
tax it.

She stated that her question to the Departnment of Revenue
pertains to synthetics. She nentioned that Senator Huggins nade
a good point when he referenced synthetics from a public safety
standpoi nt. She remarked that synthetics are illegal, but noted
that the initiative nade edi bles |egal.

She asked that the Departnent of Revenue address the follow ng:

e Confirm that marijuana will have a chain of custody that
will verify taxation in a way that is simlar to a tobacco
st anp.

e Verify that a chain of custody wll nonitor THC and
synthetic THC levels as well as follow marijuana into the
edi bl es.

e Corroborate that taxes appropriately provide for the social
servi ces associated with marij uana.

MR. BURNETT explained that the Departnent of Revenue w il be
working with the ABC Board to set up the regulations. He added
that the ABC Board will be on point to address the structure
t hat Senator MCGuire noted.

CHAI R STOLTZE concurred that all kinds of evolutions will occur
with marijuana. He pointed out that wth cigarettes, the
Legi slature and | ocal governnments have raised the taxes with the
stated policy purpose to nmake sure tax revenue and usage are
reduced. He opined that marijuana may evolve into sonething
simlar to cigarettes.

10: 20: 49 AM

CYNTHI A FRANKLIN, Director, Alcoholic Beverage Control Board,
Al aska Departnent of Conmmunity and Regional Affairs, Anchorage,
Al aska, noted that Colorado has "nedical" and "retail" marijuana
pricing. She reveal ed that nedical-pricing was $150 an ounce and
retail-pricing was $385 an ounce. She specified that Colorado's
retail-marijuana is taxed at a rate of about 25 percent in
addition to sales and |ocal taxes while nedical-marijuana is not
subject to many of the retail taxes. She said the ABC Board
urges the Legislature not to go down the path of creating two
separate types of marijuana in Al aska. She pointed out that
Col orado's nedical card holders continue to grow as people get
cheaper marijuana. She stated that Al aska has the advantage of
starting with a blank sl ate.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 24- January 27, 2015



10: 23: 41 AM

M5. FRANKLIN reveal ed that Colorado indicated that definitions
are very inportant. She asserted that the role for the
Legislature is to define terns. She said the ABC Board can work
with the definitions that the Legislature creates when the board
is looking at the regul ati ons.

She pointed out that the term "edibles" is not defined in
AS.17.38 and the ABC Board would like to see a bright-line
regarding adulterated edibles. She explained that adulterated
edibles is a separate category where existing food products are
sprayed with marijuana and repackaged. She noted that Col orado's
public health and safety representatives found edibles to be
particularly objectionable and particularly appealing to
children. She suggested that a bright-line definition for
edi bles could say that it does not include adulterated products,
nmeaning edibles nust be made from scratch. She noted that
menbers of the early aspects of Al aska' s marijuana industry
unilaterally agreed that adulterated edibles was not what they
had in m nd where sonet hing al ready made was sprayed down.

She addressed synthetic cannabi noid and expl ained that synthetic
THC is a nyth. She divulged that there is no THC in a synthetic
cannabinoid, the term was used as a marketing ploy and the
elicit substance is not related to marijuana at all. She said
synt hetic cannabinoid is a cocktail of various sundry drugs that
is marketed as "synthetic marijuana” to appeal to young people
who were looking for a high that they thought was |egal. She
opined that synthetic cannabinoids is off the table and the
di scussion of marijuana is really about a natural product that
is growmn and what can be done with the plant itself.

10: 26: 47 AM

CHAIR STOLTZE remarked that the initiative's sponsors testified
about dosages and controlling dosages. He pointed out that a
half liter of vodka with a non-reseal abl e, pop-off cap would be
frowned upon. He noted that while in Denver he had taken photos
of marijuana edibles and noted that one cookie had 70 mlligrans
(mg) of THC, or 7 doses. He said he does not snoke narijuana and
hypothetically asked if sonmeone has the self-control to just
ni bble off a single dose fromthe cookie. He inquired if the ABC
Board would have a regulatory and policy role in delineating
dosages and controlling packagi ng.

M5. FRANKLIN replied that several elenents are inportant to
assure safe recreational use of edibles. She noted that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -25- January 27, 2015



products Chair Stoltze saw in Colorado were due to cone off the
shel ves on January 31, 2015. She said Colorado went back and
rewwote their rules on edibles to take effect on February 1,
2015. She explained that Colorado revised rules around edibles
and created a serving size. She said the debate in the
st akehol ders group that nade the new edibles rules was whether
the THC serving size should be 5 ng or 10 ng. She reveal ed that
Col orado settled on 10 ng and asserted that Al aska could have 5
nmg. She explained that the reason for a 5 ng serving size is
based upon Colorado's public education program on nmarijuana
edibles to "Start |ow and go slow "

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if a 5 ng serving size would be a consuner
advisory or legal inperative. He remarked that serving size is
not indicative of what a person actually eats.

10: 29: 48 AM

M5. FRANKLIN replied correct. She pointed out that alcohol has
rules on serving sizes and serving sizes for marijuana edibles
coul d be | egi sl at ed.

CHAI R STOLTZE asserted that there nust be an inperative to |ead
the Legislature to set serving sizes relating to public health
or public safety justifications. He stated that he does not want
to enphasize what the Legislature is able to do, but why the
Legislature should do it and what public safety aspects there
are.

M5. FRANKLI N explained that the reason why Colorado settled on
10 ng was basically the scientific basis of a person who has not
previously used edi bles, what type of serving of THC would begin
to have the psychoactive effect and how the person would react.
She detailed that a person will feel unconfortable after eating
or snoking too nuch marijuana. She noted that there really were
not any scientific effects that were brought forward in terns of
poi soning in the equivalent of alcohol poisoning. She pointed
out that ingesting too nmuch alcohol certainly can |lead to death
and that has not been seen with marijuana; however, people in
Col orado and Washington have been admtted to energency roons
with unconfortable sensations due to marijuana's psychoactive
effect. She stated that the 5 ng serving size was determned to
be a small serving size where soneone wll feel the psychoactive
effect.

CHAI R STOLTZE stated that the Legislature has an inperative not
to junp into a "Reefer Madness" node, but to actually

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 26- January 27, 2015



concentrate on what the enpirical science, data, and public
saf ety aspects are.

10: 32: 14 AM

M5. FRANKLIN opined that the 5 ng serving size is a reasonable
serving size with a maxi mum of 50 ng per package that included a
cl ear denmarcation. She explained that on February 1, Colorado
will require a cholate bar to have a clear demarcation for 10 ng
squar es.

CHAI R STOLTZE asked to verify that rather than a |large block, a
chocol ate bar would have to have scorings that shows 10 ny.

M5. FRANKLI N answered correct. She detailed that Colorado has a
maxi mum of 100 ngy per package. She stated that there is no
reason why Al aska could not have a 50 ng maxi mum per package.

CHAIR STOLTZE related that when he was in Colorado he noticed
t he "Peanut Budda Buddha" bar with 210 nyg.

M5. FRANKLIN replied that the product Chair Stoltze noted wl
be renoved from stores on January 31. She detailed that under
Col orado's new rules, a chocolate bar that contains nore than
[ 100] ng cannot be sol d.

She addressed childproof packaging in Colorado and suggested
that Al aska adopt a simlar rule where an edi ble packaged in a 5
nmg serving size does not require childproof packaging, but an
edible in a 50 ng package would have to be resealable to
chi |l dproof. She noted that she toured a conpany that nade fizzy
THC drinks that had to change their bottling machine to
i ncorporate chil dproof caps.

She pointed out that prior to Colorado going to recreational
marijuana in January 2014, the state catered to a nedical
marijuana mnmarket. She explained that the nedical rmarijuana
mar ket tends to want and denmand hi gher concentration of THC. She
noted that Col orado experienced problens when the higher THC
products sold to the nedical marijuana narket was consunmed by
individuals in the recreational market that had |ower tolerance
| evel s. She asserted that Al aska is ahead of the gane by not
havi ng an established nedical marijuana market.

10: 35: 01 AM

She addressed the limtation of products appealing to kids and
noted that there is a trifold role for the Legislature
regul ators, and the |ocal governing bodies. She said Washington

SENATE STA COW TTEE -27- January 27, 2015



has a system where edibles require a pre-approval process. She
detailed that manufacturers or processors submt products and
plans to Wshington's |iquor control board, products clearly
mar ket ed towards children are not permtted. She said Washi ngton
has a stopgap that prevents the edibles market from being
entirely gumy-bears and silly-straws.

M5. FRANKLIN called attention to warning |labels and noted that
Colorado's are fairly elaborate. She pointed out that warning
| abel s are required for al cohol and she anticipates the sanme for
marijuana edibles. She recommended that Al aska uses a warning
| abel that clearly identifies the product and suggested that a
synbol be associated with the warning. She detailed that a
war ni ng synbol will work for people who cannot read English and
can inmediately associate the product as being infused wth
mari j uana.

She noted that WMajor Casanovas nmade a good point on the
definition of marijuana in the initiative. She asserted that the
Legi slature has to be very careful about altering the definition
too severely because the only way to nake edible products is to
use marijuana concentrates. She said incorporating snashed
marijuana |leaves into a brownie is not going to taste very nice
in addition to not having the desired psychoactive effect. She
expl ained that marijuana nust be heated for there to be a
psychoactive effect. She specified that putting nmarijuana into
an edible requires the marijuana to be heated in an oil base to
make a concentrate. She noted that bakeries in Colorado nake
what is called "cannabutter” where marijuana is infused into
butter over a slow heating process. She asserted that the
marijuana edi bles industry wll be elimnated if "concentrates”
is taken out of the marijuana definition and dialed back to the
Title 11 definition with just stens, flowers, and buds.

She noted that the definition referenced by Mjor Casanovas had
a strange portion at the end that says nmarijuana does not
include "oil." She pointed out that "oil" is one word used to
describe a product that is a result of solvent based extraction.
She revealed that solvent extractions in honmes has been the
cause of hash oil expl osions.

10: 39: 49 AM
CHAI R STOLTZE comrented that sone of the hone extractions using
sol vents nmake neth | abs | ook tane.

M5. FRANKLIN replied that the Al aska contingency in Col orado saw
a coupl e of explosions on video.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 28- January 27, 2015



CHAI R STOLTZE asked to specify that Ms. Franklin is referring to
unregul ated extractions occurring at hone.

M5. FRANKLIN answered yes. She said the solvent extraction in
homes is not a particularly successful nethod. She asserted that
solvent extractions in honmes is sonething that Al aska does not
want, but governing bodies should be aware of. She specified
that licensees will not use the nefarious extraction nethods
used in hones. She pointed out that |icensees in Colorado are
required to use closed-loop extraction systens for solvent or
CO2 extractions with certain safety precautions in place.

She set forth that addressing marijuana regulations is a very
difficult area due to figuring out where the rules around
marijuana stop and the existing rules begin. She pointed out
that the rules in Title 4 for alcohol are in one place and that
alcohol is not in the Controlled Substances Act. She said
officers do not have to look up two different codes and try to
figure out which one the substance falls in. She noted that
Title 4 has nmany m sdeneanor and felony crines that apply to
i ndi vidual s who are not licensed or regulated by the ABC Board,
but who are dealing with a dangerous substance. She sunmarized
that alcohol is a regulated substance, but not a controlled
subst ance.

10: 43: 03 AM

She revealed that edibles are 40 percent of the recreation
mar ket in Col orado. She stated that due to snoking prohibitions,
edibles are likely to be the nbst comonly purchased product for
touri st consunption.

She revealed that labs are big in Colorado. She said she does
not know where the labs are going to cone from in Al aska, but
| abs are essential to certify the THC content for edible serving
size. She related that Al aska was advised to have its labs up
and running before edible |licenses are issued.

CHAI R STOLTZE declared that the commttee will have the Al aska
Departnment of Environmental Conservation (DEC) address the
committee. He noted that the initiative's panphlet referred to
"crime | ab" and that does not make sense.

M5. FRANKLIN added that the ABC Board works a lot with DEC
regardi ng al cohol regul ation.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -29- January 27, 2015



VB. FRANKLIN stated that Al aska should have reasonable
advertising limts and public education about marijuana rules,
especially around edi bles. She noted that Col orado has devel oped
a good-to-know public education canpaign and basically offered
to provide the programto Al aska for free.

She asserted that |ocal governnent control is inportant. She
noted that an earlier question referenced not being able to ban
possession is based on the Ravin v. State decision and not by
the initiative. She explained that the Title 4. Local Option Law
allows commnities to ban transport, sale, manufacturing, and
distribution, but does not ban possession of alcohol. She
detailed that Local Option 4 applies to municipalities and Local
Option 3 applies villages. She disclosed that the Title 4: Local
Option Law is the best that a conmunity is going to get to. She
noted that |ocal governments in Colorado issued their own

licenses in addition to state licenses. She suggested that
consideration be given to allow local governnents to issue
| i censes, a question that has been posed by Al aska

muni ci palities.

She stated that banking and licensing will be presented at a
|ater comrmittee neeting. She noted that nany states in issuing
their nedical l|icenses have been sued because of their |icensing

sel ection process. She recommended that the state | ook carefully
at its licensing structure.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked that WM. Franklin address in the future

whet her |icenses should have an econonic vested value or should
anot her commercial fishing entitlenent type license or a taxi
medal | ion be created. He asserted that licensing nerits

di scussion due to its inpact on barriers for average people
ver sus bi g busi nesses.

10: 46: 45 AM

JEFF JESSEE, Chief Executive Oficer, Al aska Mental Health Trust
Aut hority, Anchorage, Al aska, stated that despite clainms that
marijuana may not be as dangerous as alcohol, marijuana is: not
safe, good for a person, and is addictive. He revealed that
adol escents that begin snoking marijuana have a 14 percent
addiction rate, adults at 6 percent. He added that many of the
Trust's beneficiaries have an issue with marijuana as well. He
revealed that 2.7 mllion Anericans are addicted to marijuana.

He asserted that ending marijuana's prohibition did not require
the creation of a |arge scale commercial industry to pronote the
i ncreased use and nornmalization of marijuana. He noted that the

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 30- January 27, 2015



Rand Corporation has developed a list of 12 different ways that
one could decrimnalize marijuana and the nost extreme is
exactly what the initiative proposes to do.

10: 48: 35 AM
MR. JESSE poi nted out the foll ow ng:

e The black market is not going to go away.
-Smal | business owners are not going to ban together and
open a busi ness.

-Entry into the marijuana industry will require nore than
$100, 000 i n cash.

e Mrijuana will not be regulated Iike al cohol.
-Infusing alcohol into edibles is illegal.

-THC will be allowed to be infused into edibles.

He said there are many questions that the Legislature needs to
consider. He asserted that the Legislature is the ultimte
regulators no matter what the sponsors say. He opined that the
Legislature will spend the next two sessions on the initiative;
however, he noted that the Alaska Constitution provides
protection frominitiatives by allowing the Legislature to amend
within a two year period. He pointed out that the Legislature
has a right to repeal the initiative in 2017. He opined that the
marijuana industry insisted on the 9 nonth regulatory process
because they know the Legislature cannot put the "genie back in
the bottle." He noted that he has spent 2 years working with the
al cohol industry on overhauling Title 4 and pointed out that in
many cases where the board has given licenses to unqualified
candi dates, licensees where "grandfathered” in. He said for the
governnent to change the rules and elimnate a person's economc
investnment is not appropriate for the government.

He recomended that the Legislature seriously consider extending
the regul atory process to scrutinize the foll ow ng:

e Unlimted |icensing.

 Licensing where the |icenses have econom c val ue.

* Popul ation based |icensing or other limts.

e Vapi ng.

e Child protection and chil dproofing.

* Adverti sing.

e Addressing areas in Alaska that do not have |loca
gover nnents.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -31- January 27, 2015



MR. JESSE urged that the Legislature not be stanpeded by the
constant refrain, "The people have voted, the people have
voted." He said he does not think the people had the know edge
of what the nine nonth regulatory process would nmean and how
conplex the marijuana issue would be. He asserted that the
Legislature would not be out of Iline in repealing the
initiative.

CHAIR STOLTZE asked if M. Jesse could provide the Legislature
with data on the percentage of the Trust's beneficiaries that
were served through addiction prograns and if he can delineate
mari j uana.

MR. JESSE replied that he does not have the data. He asserted
that data collection is one thing the Legislature needs to | ook
at and start collecting data for the initiative's health and
| egal inpacts.

10: 53: 41 AM

There being no further business to conme before the commttee
Chair Stoltze adjourned the Senate State Affairs Standing
Comm ttee hearing at 10:53 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -32- January 27, 2015



